
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
March 3, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Gaylord Schaap 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Stephen Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:33 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 
p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Schaap moved to approve 
the Consent Calendar as submitted. Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, except 
that Director Holmer abstained as to Item III-A (Minutes of the February meeting) as he was absent 
from that meeting.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 4, 2016 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 


 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:35 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-01, Accepting the FY 2014-15 


Audit.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Auditor Michael Celentano appeared 
via telephone and provided an introduction to the Audit report and answered questions.  
Director Holmer moved to adopt Resolution 16-01, Accepting the Final Audit for the 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2015.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-B. (7:07 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-02, Authorizing the General 


Manager to Accept the 2016 Capital Improvement Program and to Sign and Record 
a Notice of Completion.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion 
ensued.  Director Schaap moved to approve Resolution 16-02, Authorizing the General 
Manager to Accept the Fiscal Year 2016 Capital Improvement Project and to Sign and 
Record a Notice of Completion.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-C.  (7:15 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Possible USDA Loans and/or Grants for CIP 2017.  


The GM provided an overview of this item.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel 
Robin Donoghue.  Discussion ensued.  A Special Meeting was set for March 17, 2016 at 
4 p.m. for further discussion/action on this item.  


 
V-D.  (7:35 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft 2016-17 Budget.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.   
 
V-E.  (8:05 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane and 


approval of a willing selling letter.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Comments were made by legal counsel.  Director Robb-Wilder 
moved to give the GM direction to prepare a willing selling letter, including the District's 
willingness to sell the property located at 17448 River Lane to Russian River Recreation 
and Park District.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. Further discussion 
ensued but no further action was taken. 


 
 


VI. CLOSED SESSION (8:25 p.m.) 
 
The Closed Session item (Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code 
Section 54956.7; Property: APN 071-220-068 17448 River Lane (old Vacation Beach well site) 
was removed from the Agenda 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:25 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville Rainfall 
4. 2016/2017 CIP 
5. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Gantt Chart 
 


 2







 3


 
VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 


(8:34 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski announced that he had observed leaks at Safeway.   
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:37 p.m.) 
 
1. FY 2016-17 Draft Budget 
2. Sale of Riverlane property 
3. USDA Bond for CIP 2017 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:34 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:35 p.m.)*

		VI. CLOSED SESSION (8:25 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:25 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:34 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:37 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
April 7, 2016, Regular Meeting  


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 3 Regular and March 17 Special Board 


Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A.. Discussion/Action re District Property at 17448 River Lane (Est. time 15 min.)  
 
B. Discussion/Action re Possible USDA Loans and/or Grants for CIP 2017 (Est. 


time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2016-17 Budget (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Adding an Online Bill View Option (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		VIII.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors (Special) Meeting  
March 17, 2016 
4 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Richard Holmer 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata (arr. 4:03 p.m.) 
   
Board Members Absent: Gaylord Schaap 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager  
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     (None) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Lipinski at 4 p.m.   
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
(None.)  
 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE (4:03 p.m.) 
 
A. (4:03 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 16-04, Approving 
Amendment 1 to the Agreement for Engineering Services for FY 2017 Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) with Coastland Engineering Inc. (Coastland) and Authorizing the General 
Manager to Sign.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Director 
Robb-Wilder moved to approve Resolution 16-04, Approving Amendment 1 to the Agreement for 
Engineering Services for the FY 2017 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with Coastland 
Engineering Inc. (Coastland) for Purposes of Completing a Preliminary Engineering Report and 
Environmental Report, and Authorizing the General Manager to Sign.  Director Holmer seconded.  
Motion carried 4-0.  Additional comments were made by the GM.   
 
 


IV. CLOSED SESSION (4:21 p.m.) 
 
At 4:21 p.m. President Lipinski announced the item for discussion in Closed Session.  At 4:22 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 4:25 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 


 1







 2


 
 A. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: APN 071-220-068 17448 River Lane (old Vacation Beach well site) 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District 
  Direction was given to staff.  
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 4:25 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Pip Marquez de la Plata ______________ _ ______  


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE (4:03 p.m.)

		IV. CLOSED SESSION (4:21 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : April 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING DISTRICT PROPERTY AT 17448 
RIVER LANE, GUERNEVILLE  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
progress with sale of the District property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville and provide 
direction to staff.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
17448 River Lane, Guerneville, is a property of approximately one acre in Vacation 
Beach, Guerneville.  It was formerly the site of a District well which has been long 
abandoned.  The Board has discussed issues regarding this property at the September 
meeting, heard from a neighboring property's owners, Mr. and Mrs. O'Flynn, and a 
subcommittee comprising Rich Holmer and Sukey Robb-Wilder was appointed to assist 
the General Manager to investigate this item more fully.   
 
In January I learned of the Open Space District's matching grant program and 
communicated that to members of the neighborhood and the Russian River Recreation 
and Parks District (RRRL&PD).  At a meeting with Open Space District staff and RRR&PD 
Board Members I learned that RRR&PD is interested in purchasing the property in 
conjunction with the Open Space District matching funds program.  RRR&PD is pursuing 
the grant application - they expect to have the application submitted by the March 31 
deadline; the District has provided a willing selling letter to RRR&PD.   
 
   
 
 





		Meeting Date : April 7, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : March 3, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING PROGRESS WITH A POSSIBLE 
LOAN/BOND WITH USDA INCLUDING COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
the progress with the bond/grant from USDA to fund the 2017 CIP, provide and 
opportunity for public comment on loan opportunity, and provide direction to staff.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
As we discussed at recent Board meeting items, the District does not have sufficient 
funds to construct the 2017 CIP which is which is replacement of approximately 6,800 ft 
of existing main and 75 services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern 
section of Foothill Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive and River Rd on river 
side of the road.  We now know that the engineers estimate of probable cost, based on 
the preliminary design, is $1.98 million.  This puts the project clearly in the range of 
needing financing if we choose to do this project on schedule in FY 2017.    At the last 
three Board meetings, we have discussed the possibility of a US Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) loan/bond to fund the 2017 CIP.  The terms would be 2.5% interest 
with 25% loan forgiveness with a 40-year term.  The annual payment would be 
approximately $60,000.   
 
The District has given notice to Coastland Engineering to proceed with the Preliminary 
Engineering Report and Environmental Report which must be done prior to loan 
application submission.  We expect those items to be completed in approximately one 
month.   
 
Part of the loan application process requires that notice of a public meeting on this item 
must be included in the loan application submission.  The District advertised this public 
meeting in the Sonoma West Times in the March 17th edition and a copy of that will be 
included in the application submission.   





		Meeting Date : March 3, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 7, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive the draft Budget Report and discuss any 
outstanding issues regarding the Draft District FY 2016-2017 Budget, including the 
District’s proposed water rates based on a 3% increase, and provide direction to 
staff and the ad hoc Budget subcommittee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY 2016-2017. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2016-2017 (FY17) Budget was presented at the March meeting.  At the 
meeting we discussed budget issues, the proposed water rate increases, and the line 
item details of the proposed FY17 Budget.  During the discussion several items were 
highlighted, among them was the projection of water sales revenues.  Highlights of 
the FY17 Budget include: 
 


 A 3% increase in the Water Usage, Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges.    This is the sixth year of the nine year plan to increase capital 
funding to a sustainable level.  
 


 Water sales are projected to be flat.   
 


 The capital project to be constructed in FY17 is the Old River Road/River Road 
Project that runs along River Road from Morningside Drive to Rio Nido.  This 
project will be funded by a USDA loan for which the District is currently 
applying.     


 
 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund is budgeted at 


$330,000 which is a result of the flat water sales from drought-related water 
use restrictions. 


 
 The USDA Loan which will total approximately $2.2 million and include a 25% 


grant.   
 
 


 
The Proposition 218 notice was mailed by March 21.   
 







DRAFT FY 2016-2017 BUDGET REPORT  2 
April 7, 2016 
 


 


Exhibit A is the draft FY17 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget 
detail, the revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    
This document plus information on the proposed 3% water rates increase will be on 
the District website.   


 
 


  
Table 1.  FY 2016-2017 Budget Preparation  


Review Capital Improvement Program  December 3, 2015 


Budget Committee meetings 
February/March 


2016 
Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates March 3, 2016 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase March 21, 2016 
Draft Budget Report to Board for 
Discussion/Action April 7, 2016 
Approve Budget 


 Prop 218 Public Hearing on Water Rates May 5, 2016 
 


 
  
 
  







Exhibit A 


 


 
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2016-17 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Tim Lipinski, President 


Sukey Robb-Wilder, Vice President 
Pip Marquez de la Plata, Financial Coordinator 


Gaylord Schaap  
Richard Holmer 


 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2016-17 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (FY17) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.7 million and capital improvement expenses of $3.2 million. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.  Note that sources of funds include approximately 
$2,200,000 from a US Department of Agriculture (USDA) loan and grant for capital 
improvements.   . 
 


Figure 1. FY 2017 Expenses
Total = $5.0 Million


(Includes FY17 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
44%


Salary and Benefits
24%


Debt Repayment
21%


Services and Supplies
11%


Figure 2.  FY17 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $5.5 Million


$3.3 Million Revenues + $2.2 Million USDA Bond 


Base Rate Charge
27%


Water Usage Charge
11%


CDRC
5%


Assessments
14%


Interest
0%


Rent, Other
2%


USDA Bond
41%







FY 2016-17 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


3 


FY 2016-17 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET
OPERATING BUDGET


FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY15-16 
BUDGET


FY 15-16
Projected  


 FY 16-17
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY17-FY16 
Budgets 


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE


3 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Ch


Table 1 is a summary of the FY17 Budget which is described in detail in the following 
pages.  The FY17 Budget is similar in form and content to prior years’ budgets.  The 
FY17 Budget includes the sixth year of 3% increases for the Base Rate and Water 
Usage Charges and the fourth year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge which are designed to develop sustainable capital project funding.   The District 
anticipates construction of a major water main replacement project on Old River Road 
and River Road which will be funded by a USDA loan/grant.  


 


a 254,854 261,565            262,500             270,375          8,810           


5 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,397,015 1,434,921        1,438,925         1,482,093       47,172         


6 571,340 587,100           579,962            597,361 10,261


7 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 2,223,209 2,022,021        2,018,887 2,079,454 57,433         


8 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,283,586 2,281,387 2,349,828 66,242         


9 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 110,982 130,450 114,846 3,864           


10 Total Income 2,352,174 2,394,568 2,411,837 2,464,674 70,106         


11 EXPENSES
12 SALARY & BENEFITS


13 769,269 837,213 909,600 932,100 94,887         


14 287,128 327,417 266,867 273,460 (53,957)        


15 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,056,397 1,164,630 1,176,467 1,205,560 40,930         


16 88,010 102,000 102,000 93,000 (9,000)          


17 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 535,780 525,915 527,910 (7,870)          


18 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,627,502 1,700,410 1,702,382 1,733,470 33,060         


19 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $724,672 $694,158 $709,455 $731,204 37,046$       


20 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 72,000 46,998 67,000 (5,000)          


21 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 553,947 621,565 642,500 640,375 18,810         


22 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 119,837 593 19,957 23,830 23,237         


23
24 CAPITAL BUDGET
25 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
26 TOTAL REVENUE 2,061,936 2,038,565 2,200,500 3,510,375 1,471,810    


27 EXPENSES
28 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 970,693 1,035,106 1,035,106 1,035,106 -                   


29 Total Capital Expenses 1,090,337            2,030,400        1,161,424         2,212,000       181,600       


30 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 3,065,506 2,196,530 3,247,106 181,600       


31 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 906 -1,026,941 3,970 263,269 1,290,210    


32 503,080 349,052 370,351 374,098 25,046         


33
34 TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,988,435            2,442,556        2,222,362         2,509,461       66,905         


35    Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,774,259            1,253,616        1,033,423         1,307,296       53,680         


Net Capital Funding


Total Benefits


Total Salary


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


Total Utilities







FY 2016-17 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


4 


2016-17 Fiscal Year (FY17) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed and its operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY17 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
sixth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges, and the fourth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   A principal source of revenues for the FY17 Budget is water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the sixth year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $360,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 32 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to have a small increase because of 
continued depressed water sales from drought--related water use restrictions. We 
believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a sustainable capital 
improvement program for the District.  
 
The current drought has a big impact on the budget planning in this and future years and 
that shows up in our Net Capital Funding amount.  Water sales will continue to be 
depressed because of the California State Water Resources Control Board direction for 
SSWD to keep water use at 84% of 2013 levels.  Water use in FY 2016 is lower than 
that - approximately 80% of 2013.  We expect that water use in the coming fiscal year 
will be at a similar level, and that a 3% rate increase will result in a 3% revenue increase 
in water sales.  We expect that once the drought restrictions are eased, water sales 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2016-17 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


5 


revenue will increase and the District will move toward reaching the $500,000 net capital 
funding goal.   
 
FY 2017 CIP (Table 2) and USDA Loan/Bond:  The FY17 Capital Budget includes 
FY17 CIP which is replacement of approximately 6,800 ft of existing main and 
75 services on Old River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of 
Foothill Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive and River Rd on river 
side of the road.  The estimated cost of approximately $2.2 million including 
construction costs, and inspection and construction management.  The District is 
undertaking this large project because of the need to replace the existing aged cast iron 
pipe.  Because of the size of this project the District is proposing to borrow the funding 
from USDA Rural Development.  The loan/bond would have an interest rate of 2.5% and 
we expect 25% of the loan amount to be a grant.  The loan would have a 40 year 
payback period and cost the District approximately $60,000 per year starting in FY18.   
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  The FY17 Budget projects that the 
District will have approximately $1.29 million in Reserves Above District Policy at the end 
of FY17.   
 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY17 Budget include: 
 


 As noted above, we expect water sales to be similar to FY 2016 which is 
depressed below historical levels because of the drought water use restrictions 
imposed by the State Water Resources Control Board and the lingering effect of 
these restrictions once those requirements are lifted. 


 Salaries are increased by 2% consistent with the Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with District employees, and contracts for nonrepresented employees 
increase in a similar manner.   


 Employees pay the employee share of PERS retirement (7% of salary) which is 
also consistent with the MOU.    







FY 2016-17 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


6 


 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF) is budgeted at 
$330,000 in FY17. 


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY17 Budget: 
 
The FY17 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to increase approximately 2%.  Benefits are 
budgeted to increase approximately $10,000 over the projected FY16 budget because of 
a increases in medical and workers comp insurance costs.  Salaries and Benefits are a 
major District expense – approximately 70% of the FY17 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $8,000 lower than the FY16 approved 
budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and is budgeted at a similar amount for FY17.   Governmental Fees and Professional 
Services are budgeted to have a small increase ($2,000).  Electricity is a big expense 
item and is budgeted to be $10,000 less than FY16.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures is at a similar level to FY16 because the purchase of a new 
truck is included.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to 
repair the road up to the Monte Rio tanks, and a tank liner at the Park Avenue Tank. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $717,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($330,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($270,375).   
 
The FY15 Capital Budget major expense is the FY 2017 CIP (estimated cost $2.2 
Million) described above and in Table 2.  A USDA loan/grant will fund the cost of 
this project.  
 
Capital Interest revenue has been reduced to reflect expected continuing low interest 
rates and lower fund amounts in this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 21% of total 
District annual expenses in FY17.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.6 million remain in the USDA 
bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed capital 
improvements, and refinanced in part in 2013 and 2014.  Paid off in 2054.  
Annual payment - $64,284.   







FY 2016-17 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


7 


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY17 payment is $566,508.    
Remaining principal is $6,941,000. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-22.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50.  Remaining principal is $980,092.94. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.  Remaining 
principal is $2,186,930.86. 


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY17, District Policy Reserves are at $1,207,907 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are $1,287,199.    
 
The detailed FY17 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2017 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2017    


  


Old River Road/River Road (GV) - replace approximately 6,800 ft 
of existing main and 75 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive and include Orchard 
Rd and Foothill Drive and River Rd on the River side of the road $2,200,000


 





		Item V-C - FY 2016-2017 Draft Budget Discussion

		Meeting Date: April 7, 2016 



		Item V-C.1 - FY17 Budget Report Draft

		Board of Directors

		Pip Marquez de la Plata, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2016-17 Fiscal Year (FY17) Budget










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: April 7, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE ADDING AN ONLINE BILL VIEW OPTION 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None at this time.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Staff has received numerous requests from customers to have the option to view 
their statements online, a service commonly offered by larger utilities, banks, and 
credit cards.   
 
Recently staff was approached by a company offering just such a service (and 
more), and they believe they can adapt it to our current billing system.  
Administrative staff met with the company, Smart Utility Systems, via computer 
and learned more about their Smart Customer Mobile (SCM) product.   
 
Their proposed cost to install SCM is $7,000, plus a $5,000/year license fee if we 
agree to a 5-year contract; significantly more if we wanted a shorter term.  We 
currently pay nothing to maintain the billing system. 
 
Staff is interested in the Board's opinions regarding the value of providing an 
online bill view option to our customers versus the cost to do so. 
 
  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VII   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 7, 2016  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February were 13,058 units (30.0 AF, Monte 
Rio cycle) and production was 54.31 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales were higher and 
production was lower (28.4 AF and 57.5 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage 
increased a bit (22.4) compared to January but is lower than one year ago (23%).   The 
reduction from January 2013, the State Board standard, was 9.7%, below the State 
mandate of 16%., but we are still averaging approximately 20% for the summer/fall/winter 
(May-February).  GPCD for February was 59.7.  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % 
difference since 2008 separated out for the Guerneville and Monte Rio systems.   


 
2. Leaks:  In February we had 3 total leaks and spent 14.75 man-hours on them.   Those are 


fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and compared to February one 
year ago (8 leaks, 47.5 man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with 
a total breaks line as well.       


   
3.  Guerneville Rainfall:  We are mostly through this El Nino rain year and March was a 


nicely wet month - a wet two weeks or so but no flooding.  We are above last year and the 
recent  (since 2008) average, but below the long-term average.  Figure 3 shows historical 
rainfall compared to this year's rain.   


 
   The near flooding raised an issue the Board may want to discuss at a future meeting - we 


learned in preparation for anticipated flooding of the El Bonita well field that the State 
Division of Drinking Water would expect the District to issue boil water notices if the wells at 
that location need to be operated while under water.  We had thought that we had 
addressed that issue to the State's satisfaction (the last large inundation and boil water 
notice was in 2006 and was due to flood water infiltrating the raw water line because of a 
leak in the raw water line from the wells) but we learned during this last event we had not.  
We have scheduled a meeting with State staff to discuss this matter in late April.                       


 
4. 2017 CIP:   We are working with Coastland Engineering to produce the Preliminary 


Engineering Report required by the USDA loan application process.            
   


5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   No toilet rebates reported for March. 
 
6. In-House Construction Projects: In March two in-house construction projects were 


reported: replacement of 800 feet of galvanized 2" and 3/4" pipe with HDPE pipe (57 man-







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
March 3, 2016 
 


hours), and removed meter and installed shutoff near road and away from excavation on Old 
Cazadero Rd.(1.5 man-hours).  


 
7. Gantt Chart:   The Gantt Chart for April has ongoing design of the 2017 CIP - that will take 


longer than shown in the Gantt Chart because of the PER preparation reported above.          
 
 
 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
March 3, 2016 
 


 Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


O
cto


be
r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


c
ip


it
a


ti
o


n
 (


in
)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2015


2016


07-15 Avg


-







 
Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 FY17+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2016 CIP Design


        2016 CIP Award of Contract


        2016 CIP Construction Starts


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Jul-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest ??


Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal July-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: April 7, 2016 



